Vision 3

ePharmacy User Guide (Scotland)



Copyright © INPS Ltd 2014 The Bread Factory, 1A Broughton Street, Battersea, London, SW8 3QJ T: +44 (0) 207 501700 F:+44 (0) 207 5017100 W: <u>www.inps.co.uk</u>

Copyright Notice

© 2014 INPS All Rights Reserved.

No part of this document may be photocopied, reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, whether electronic, mechanical, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of INPS.

No warranty of accuracy is given concerning the contents of the information contained in this publication. To the extent permitted by law, no liability (including liability to any person by reason of negligence) will be accepted by INPS, its subsidiaries or employees for any direct or indirect loss or damage caused by omissions from or inaccuracies in this document.

INPS reserves the right to change without notice the contents of this publication and the software to which it relates.

Product and company names herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners.

INPS Ltd. The Bread Factory 1a Broughton Street London SW8 3QJ

Website: www.inps.co.uk

Contents

EPHARMACY	5
Introduction to ePharmacy	5
GP Prescribers for ePharmacy	6
Why can't our locum GP print prescriptions?	6
Advanced Printing for ePharmacy and Printer Profiles Printer Profiles	6 7
ePharmacy Prescription Notes	8
eAMS Activating eAMS Patient Consent for eAMS Adding an Acute eAMS Prescription Prescription Notes - AMS Instalment Dispensing Qualifying Items for eAMS Non-AMS Items Changing between ePharmacy and Paper Prescription Printing of eAMS Items Reprinting Restrictions Cancelling an eAMS Item Editing AMS Items eAMS messages in Mail Manager	9 9 11 12 12 14 14 15 16 17 19 20 21
eCMS Workflow Overview GP Perspective Patient Perspective Pharmacy Perspective Activating eCMS Adding Pharmacy Codes Flagging Suitable eCMS Patients Group Populating Patients Suitable for eCMS Flagging Individual Patients as Suitable for eCMS Changing Patient Suitability in Patient Details, Consultation Manager Changing Patient Suitability from the Therapy tab, Consultation Manager Changing Patient Suitability from Therapy - Add eCMS Registration and Patient Status Eligible/Not Eligible Patient Suitability CMS Registration Status Viewing CMS Registration Status and Suitability CMS Prescribing	22 22 23 24 24 25 26 26 29 31 32 32 33 34 34 34 34 35 36

Therapy - CMS Filter	37
Dispensing Information in Consultation Manager	37
Adding a CMS Prescription	38
Duplicate CMS Items	41
Printing the CMS GP10	41
Printing Contraceptive Endorsements	42
Reprinting CMS GP10	43
Reprinting Restrictions	44
Reorder Forms	46
Printing Newly Added CMS Items At Another Time	46
Dispensing Events	47
Reauthorising CMS Items	47
Important Information about Deleting, Amending or Cancelling CMS Items	48
Editing CMS Items	48
Editing Unprinted CMS Items	48
Editing CMS Items that have been printed and sent	48
Cancelling CMS Items	48
Display Inactive/Cancelled CMS Items	50
Deleting CMS Items	51
Deleting Unprinted CMS items	51
Deleting Printed CMS items	51
Deleting CMS Dispensing Events	52
CMS Overdue Dispensing Alert	52
Adding an alert after the CMS item has been entered	53
Overdue Dispensing Alert - Alerts Pane	53
Overdue Dispensing Report	53
eCMS Exclusions	54
eCMS Therapy Options	54
CMS - Therapy Initial List	55
eCMS Message Management	55
eCMS Message Collector	55
Manual Collection	55
CMS Message Collector Audit	57
eCMS Regular Tasks	59
GPs	59
Admin staff	59
Mail Gateway	59
eCMS Reporting	60

INDEX

ePharmacy

Introduction to ePharmacy

Scottish ePharmacy is intended to improve patient care and reduce GPs' workload by making better use of pharmacists' skills and expertise, especially for patients requiring long-term medication for chronic conditions.

eAMS and eCMS are names of the ePharmacy solutions supporting the electronic Acute Medication Service and Chronic Medication Service. After pilots in Ayrshire & Arran, it was decided to extend the community pharmacy services, now known as ePharmacy.

Acute Medication Service (AMS) describes the pharmaceutical service provided by community pharmacists and GPs to acute patients by adding electronic support and automated payment for acute prescription items.

The patient attends for an appointment. During the consultation, a decision is taken to create an acute prescription. The patient consent is reviewed and the prescriptions are printed. Once authorised, the prescriptions are given to the patient who has responsibility for taking them to a community pharmacy.

Acutes and repeat issues are handled as AMS prescriptions. These are printed on a GP10 prescription with a barcode. An XML message is transmitted (via AMS) through the NHSnet to the ePharmacy store to await call down by the pharmacist when the patient first presents at the pharmacy. The pharmacy will access the patient registration details through the central patient registration system.

The pharmacist is then able to scan the bar code to retrieve the corresponding message. If an item is deleted or edited after the initial message has been sent, then further update or cancellation messages are sent.

Note - Neither nurses nor supplementary prescribers in Scotland are authorised to print bar-coded AMS prescriptions.

The **Electronic Chronic Medication Service(eCMS)** is part of the wider Tranche 4 requirements for NHS Scotland. This scheme allows CMS items to be sent electronically from Vision to the Community Pharmacy (CP), where all subsequent dispensing events can be managed. eCMS is similar to eAMS (electronic Acute Medication Service), but eCMS involves printing a single eCMS GP10 for multiple dispensing events. See *Activating eCMS* (page 24)

GP Prescribers for ePharmacy

All GP prescribers should have a prescriber number and GMC code entered in the Control Panel Staff file. If your practice is using eAMS, then in order to print prescribed items, a GMC code is essential and without it, the prescription will be not printed.

An exception is made for locums, registrars and GP retainers (see below).

GP Locums and ePharmacy

From DLM 280 onwards, a user, if a Locum or GP Registrar, will pick up the Responsible Partner's GMC code if their own is not recorded in Control Panel, in the same way that they currently pick up the Responsible Partner's prescriber number.

We recommend if GP locums are doing sessions at your practice that each and every locum name is entered as a record under Staff (role = Salaried partner) * in Control Panel - File Maintenance.

Check that the locum's GMC code is entered in **Control Panel - File Maintenance -Edit user** [locum name] - **Identifiers** tab. All locums and GP Registrars share a prescriber code* (GMP/PPA) with their responsible partner, but they should have their own personal GMC code. If the GMC code is not entered for locums, registrars and GP retainers, then Vision will pick up their Responsible Partner's GMC code.

You can inactivate or activate locum staff very quickly from the Control Panel - File Maintenance - Staff record to control their display in staff lists.

What is <u>not</u> recommended is the practice of entering just one locum in the Staff file, called, for example, Dr Locum, and not entering a GMC code on this record. No prescriptions will be printed from a GP prescriber without a GMC code. From an audit point of view, the correct name of the GP locum and the correct GMC code is important against each issued prescription.

* **Note** - Currently choosing Locum as a role in Staff does not allow entry of the doctor's own prescribing number and the system forces you to use that of the Responsible partner. Choosing Salaried partner, however, does allow a unique prescribing number.

Why can't our locum GP print prescriptions?

If a locum GP is having trouble printing prescriptions, there may be an error message along the lines of "Transform failed: ... @gmc_code....".

Check that the locum's GMC code is entered in **Control Panel - File Maintenance -Edit user** [locum name] - **Identifiers** tab. All locums and GP Registrars share a prescriber code (GMP/PPA) with their responsible partner, but they should have their own personal GMC code.

Advanced Printing for ePharmacy and Printer Profiles

Advanced Printing MUST be switched on for ePharmacy. Prescription can be printed on the new stationery in Scotland GP10(SS)(4) or on the older version (3).

Printer Profiles

The Printer profiles screen can be reached from the following:

- The Vision front menu **Options Setup Printers.** Then Add or Edit a Printer Profile.
- Consultation Manager Therapy (Current or Scripts) ¹ Prescription Manager - Setup - Print Profile.
- Consultation Manager Consultation Options Prescription Setup Print Profile.

If you are using Printer Profiles for the first time

In Scotland in Printer Profiles, you need to set up both the GP prescription stationery and the Nurse/SP prescriptions. Although it is optional, this does allow you to specify the different "bins" on the printer from which the GP and nurse/SP prescriptions can be loaded.

- 1. From the Vision front menu, go to **Vision Options Setup**, then on the **Printers** tab.
- 2. Select **Prescriptions** and click on **Add**.
- 3. Select the **Available Printer** from which the GP prescription stationery will load.
- 4. In **Stationery**, select (GP10(SS)(4)) if you are using version (4). If not select version (3).
- 5. Print a Test Page and make any adjustments to the left and top margins by trial and error.
- 6. Click on **Advanced** and select the **Paper Source**, if required, to specify the bin/tray for loading.
- 7. Click on **Save** then **Close**

If you are already using Printer Profiles and want to change the prescription stationery

Currently most Scottish GP prescribers are using version 3 of the prescription forms - GP10(SS)(3). There is a new version of this prescription soon to be available in Scotland called GP10(SS)(4).

The Stationery is a user setting, **so all prescribers must update this setting individually.**

- 1. When a GP wants to change over to printing on the new prescriptions:
- 2. Go to Vision Options Setup, then on the Printers tab.
- 3. Make sure **Prescriptions** is selected, then click on **Edit**.
- 4. In Stationery, select (GP10(SS)(4)).
- 5. Click on **Save** then **Close** to the front Printer Profiles screen.

Note - Each individual GP must make this stationery change.

ePharmacy Prescription Notes

The following table shows which prescription notes are printed on the left or right hand side of the prescription and if they are also included in the electronic eAMS or eCMS message:

AMS Prescription Notes

	Prints on RHS	Prints on LHS	Included in Electronic Message
Patient Note	Р	x	x
Dispensing Note	x	Ρ	x
CMS Note 🗳	Not available	Not available	Not available

CMS Prescription Notes

CHS Frescription N	otes		
	Prints on RHS	Prints on LHS	Included in Electronic Message
Patient Note	Ρ	x	x
Dispensing Note	x	Ρ	x
CMS Note 🗳	x	x	Ρ

eAMS

Activating eAMS

AMS needs to be switched on and you will be advised how to do this.

Note that for AMS to work:

- The patient must have a valid CHI number recorded in Registration;
- Advanced printing is enabled.

Patient Consent for eAMS

Patient consent for participation in the AMS scheme is assumed, though it can be withdrawn (patient consent for future CMS will not be assumed). GPs are not required to record consent in Vision as all patients will be set to consenting by default. Only if patient consent is withdrawn does this dissent need recording.

Once consent is withdrawn, the prescription will not print with a barcode and there is no electronic message.

1. From **Consultation Manager - Patient Details – Preferences**, you can record or change the patient's consent to the sending of electronic AMS prescriptions. You can also access the patient's consent form from within Prescription Manager.

🙀 Rana DALGLISH 64Y -	21/06/1943 (F) Sandy Mount, St Johns Avenue, Thorner,	, Leeds, LS14 3BZ - [(
- Consultation Summary	Guidelines Add List View Window Help	
🗵 📌 🕍 🌒 🚽 🤌 🖉	🎽 + 🔨 🕺 🗊 🗑 🗊 🗮 🚯 🕼 🖟 🚧 🖉 💼 📖 🗨	, == ₹
Initial Filter ▲ - 3 Problems -➡ 201 Consultation	Eiltered List Summary/Grid Tests Therapy Guidelines Appointments Patient Select Patient Details Consulta	nGMS Guidelines
⊕-⅔ 3 Drug Allergies & A ⊕-Ω 15 Recalls and Revi	Therapy	
 B Patient Preference B Medical History ■ 	Preferred Pharmacy :	Change
 		
15 Examination Find 15 Examinations		
	Acute Medication Service (AMS)	
Well Person Clinic Well Person Clinic Well Person Clinic Person Clinic Person Clinic	Patient consents to: - The sending of AMS prescriptions electronically	Ch <u>a</u> nge
>		
Health promotion		

 You may optionally select the patient's preferred pharmacy where their prescriptions are dispensed but this is not essential for eAMS. The pharmacy name must first be added in **Control Panel - File Maintenance -Organisations** under **Pharmacy** for it to appear in the Preferred Pharmacy picklist.

- 3. When you go into **Preferences**, you should see the AMS consent listed under Preferred Pharmacy, with the words *Patient consents to The sending of AMS prescriptions electronically.*
- 4. If instead you see the message "*This patient is not eligible for this feature*", then it is most likely that that patient has no CHI number recorded in Registration.
- 5. The consent form is also accessible from **Registration** which may be more convenient for admin staff to record consent, rather than starting a consultation in Consultation Manager. Note that you should not have the same patient open in Consultation Manager *and* Registration at the same time if you are recording consent.

Mr PATRICK ESKANDER	
File Action Folder Report Transfer Security View Help	
Registration Details	×
✓ Incomplete Details ✓ Incomplete RegLinks	
Personal Address Registration Notes Other Ids Family Consent	
Consent refused for GPRD Data Collection	
Consent refused for THIN Data Collection: 🔲	
Acute Medication Service (AMS)	
Patient consents to: - The sending of AMS prescriptions electronically <u>Change</u>	
OK Cancel Care <u>r</u> <u>H</u> elp	

6. The Consent dialog allows the recording of consent or dissent. Assent to sending AMS prescriptions is assumed. If the patient withdraws consent, this too needs to be recorded.

7. To change consent status, click on the **Change** button to display the ePharmacy Consent form.

ePharmacy Consent	X
ePharmacy Patient consents to:	Save
Send eAMS prescriptions	Cancel
	Help

8. On the ePharmacy Consent screen, the box Send eAMS prescriptions is ticked if the patient consents to electronic prescriptions. If the patient withdraws consent or wants to opt out, remove the tick from Send eAMS prescriptions and click on Save. If a patient opts out of AMS, then no barcode is printed on the prescription form and no electronic message transmitted to EPMS.

Adding an Acute eAMS Prescription

An eAMS item is created in the same way as for a normal acute with Therapy Add from the Current tab.

- 1. Use **Therapy Add** from the Current tab in **Consultation Manager** in the usual way to add the acute medication.
- Double click in **Drug Name** to access the **Drug Select** screen. You can check that the medication will be part of AMS by looking at the Product Information in the bottom pane (use the down scroll arrow to reach this). If it has a DM+D mapping, then it can be included in AMS, with certain exceptions see *Qualifying items for eAMS* (page 13).
- 3. Click OK to complete Therapy Add.
- 4. Press F9 or click on 🖾.
- 5. On the Prescription Manager screen, any acute medications added today will be selected by default.
- 6. Click on Fint or press F9.
- 7. The barcoded prescription (token) will be printed, and the AMS message sent off, if the item is eligible for AMS.

8. The XML message can be tracked through Mail Manager and you should visit this regularly to check for rejected AMS messages.

of Initial View 4									. 0
Files Appointing	nenits Patient Select Patient Details C	ionsultat	iore i in	ounal FilmediList Summ	ay/G	id Texts + Thesa	P# Links 1	Sudelines	
Consultation Current	Scapit Repeats B	5	v 0	四日日 日日		Add Medication	Review		
g Allergies & Advers Date	Onag	100	Max	Docegiptine	0	Preparation	Authorized	Repeat Until	Prescriber
cals and Revent 20/11/08	 PENICILINI V table 250kg 			ONE FOUR INNES A DAY		tublet(c)			AH
ideal History	2 CO-CODAMOL labs Birg+500ing	1	99	ONE OR TWO FOUR TIMES A DAY WHEN REQUIRED	1	Pack of 100 tablet(s	25/07/03	28/10/2003	JM
estyle 24/01/02	THYRO-ONE tabs 25micrograms	12	99	ONE EVERY MORNING	1	Pack of 28 tablet(s)	14/09/02	28/10/2003	JM
anination Findings 24/01/00	THYROGINE table 50micrograms	17	99	TWO EVERY MORNING	2	Pack of 28 tablet(s)	16/04/02	28/10/2003	JM.
nunisations 24/01/02 Agregue	2 PARACETAMOL labs 500mg	17	99	ONE OR TWO FOUR TIMES A DAY WHEN DEDURED	100	tablets	05/01/02	28/10/2003	,IM
Test Nesults	TIDICI DEENAT and the	*	96	TO BE ADDI (CO TUBEE	100	CT MOVE	11/11/01	20/11/2000	Ref. 1
Handh Suppliance									180. \$
Platerventions Prescas	plon A Age and Standard			E Re	aidei I	Form P	obels Drug	List Show presi 2 days	cliptions from 1 Cles
2 SUNCE	ind algomaty					and the second	sole It =	351	10
y We wanted		100	1722	110-1					
motion out of date	miter Active Necerit Netected (U)	Search	n) All	Face	_				
motion data incon	Date Clinician Drug/Advice					Dosage			Quantity
ations Due in 06/05/2004 a/d //et/Petr/Polo/H d Therapy secular Risk 17% 22% 22%	P 20717/66 AH FENICILLIN V IA	der 250e	10			ONE FOUR T	IMES A DAY		25 (

Prescription Notes - AMS

The following table demonstrates which prescription notes are printed on the left, or right hand side of the prescription for AMS prescriptions. None of the notes are sent in the electronic message:

	Prints on RHS	Prints on LHS	Included in Electronic Message
Patient Note	Ρ	x	x
Dispensing Note	x	Ρ	x
CMS Note 🗳	Not available	Not available	Not available

Instalment Dispensing

Note that there is a new icon on Therapy Add . When clicked, a free text box is displayed for you to add a note for the pharmacist if you intend for the item to be

dispensed in instalments, eg *Dispense weekly*. Type in free text then click OK. The icon will now have a red tick to show a note has been added .

Instalment Dispensing		X
Please enter the additional info	ormation for instalr	ment dispensing:
please dispense weekly		
	ОК	Cancel

The text of your message appears under Dosage for that item on a Therapy list.

It will also be printed on the prescription in the endorsement area with ${<}$ I> to indicate instalment dispensing.

Qualifying Items for eAMS

When an unprinted acute or repeat issue is viewed within Prescription Manager, it is displayed as an AMS item provided that the following conditions are met:

- AMS is enabled
- The person to sign is a GP. Nurses and Supplementary Prescribers are excluded from AMS.
- The patient has not withdrawn consent to participate in the AMS program.
- The drug is not a prescription which normally prints on the right-hand side
- The item is not PA (personally/practice administered). Note that in Scotland, PA items are not printed. if you tick the P/Admin box on Therapy Add because the item is practice administered, the Print Script checkbox is automatically unchecked. If you want the prescription to be printed, recheck the Print Script box again.
- The item is not Private (right-hand side)
- The source of drug is "In Practice"

Any item that falls within the scope of eAMS is printed with a barcode on the prescription form, with up to 3 items per form.

Non-AMS Items

Any items selected from printing which fall outside eAMS scope are printed on prescriptions without barcodes, with up to 3 items per form, and no electronic is generated. For example, if 6 items are selected, 4 in eAMS scope and 2 outside, there will be 2 eAMS bar-coded prescription with electronic messages, and 1 non-bar-coded prescription without an electronic message.

Changing between ePharmacy and Paper

On the Prescription Manager screen, the prescription type can be changed between Paper/ePharmacy via the right click context menu. Paper prints the prescription and no message is sent. ePharmacy prints the prescription and sends an electronic message.

<	Ш.	
Prescription Manager - Add	🔂 Erint 🛛 🔛 Be-Print	anc
Prescriptions Print Age Authorised Signatory:	Prescription ✓ ePharmacy Paper Patient Summary	Lat
Dr David Keighley	Urgent Vingent Print	
Send Print Date Ulinician Drug/Adv □ ● □ ● □ ● □ ● □ ●	Reprint Ion Urgent).	
□ ● Pharmacy prescription co Ready ● ● 22/01/07 DKEI BETNOVA	Properties Dicemmy r ceme of on Urgent). ATE crm 0.1%	

Note - in some cases or error, the system will not send an electronic prescription and will need to swap to a paper prescription. For example, this could happen if:

- If a repeat master, added in the past, has a blank Preparation field (eg glucagon) (probably first prescribed a year or so ago). eAMS demands an entry in the Preparation field so a blank Preparation field will give an error message and the prescription will be paper only.
- it has not yet reached its maximum number of issues so is therefore still active
- and you try to print an issue.

Pre	escription Manager	
!	Print failed.	OK
	More details	
	The prescription could not be sent. Change the prescription to the prescription in the Prescription Manager and selecting Pape press Print.	Paper by right-clicking on er from the menu. Then
Ξ	Extended error information	
	Some repeat issues cannot be submitted to the AMS service be master have no preparation recorded. Please change the items re-authorise and re-issue the repeat masters so that a preparation the repeat masters are the repeat masters are the repeated by	ecause they and their s to paper only, or on is present

Prescription Printing of eAMS Items

Print eAMS items in the usual way (F9, F9). The first F9 or Print icon reaches the On the Prescription Manager screen from where you can select which items to print.

When you finalise (ie click on the Print button Erint) on Prescription Manager, the following takes place:

- 1. Translation of the message(s). This is to detect any translation problems early.
- 2. Printing of the script(s). This will provide definitive paging information and item order.
- 3. Sending the message(s) using the paging and item order information obtained during the printing stage.

On the printed prescription, the following are printed:

- the patient's CHI number
- The DM+D code (18 digits)
- Any endorsement. <S> sls, <C> contraceptive, <I> instalment dispensing with text of message
- Unused space on prescription is filled with asterisks
- The bar code for eAMS items has a UPN (unique prescription number) which is repeated and can be used to identify the prescription on the Mail Manager message
- The last 5 digits of the GP's PPA number
- the GMC code (beneath the practice telephone number)

The following fields are in Courier 11 Black to make them scannable: CHI Number, DM+D Code, Script Date, Endorsements, Prescriber Code. Other fields have varying point sizes to fit them on the prescription.

Reprinting Restrictions

When reprinting an ePharmacy AMS or CMS prescription, you cannot reprint the prescription if the selected prescriber in Prescription Manager differs from the original signer of the prescription or is no longer valid in Vision. Where this happens, the following is displayed:

"The selected signatory does not match that of the original prescription(s). Please select the original signing clinician in the list of signatory and reprint the prescription(s).

ePharmacy (AMS/CMS) prescription containing n item signed on nn/nn/nnnn by "prescriber name""

🔥 Pi	escription Manager 🛛 🛛 🔀
!	Reprint failed.
	More details The selected signatory does not match that of the original prescription(s). Please select the original signing clinician in the list of signatory and reprint the
Θ	ePharmacy (CMS) prescription containing 1 item. signed on 14/08/2013 by Dr Mel Earth. (Type: 663, Id: 185)

AMS Reprinting where original prescriber is still valid

You should change the authoriser in Prescription Manager and continue to reprint.

Where the original prescriber is no longer available/valid, you are now asked to manually cancel the prescription and re-prescribe:

"The selected signatory does not match that of the original prescription(s). The original signing clinician is no longer a valid signatory. If you need to reprint the prescription(s), you are advised to:

- 1. Cancel the original prescription(s) AMS/CMS only.
- 2.Re-prescribe all necessary items.

3.Contact the patient and/or dispenser(s).

ePharmacy (AMS/CMS) prescription containing n item signed on nn/nn/nnnn by "prescriber name""



AMS Reprinting where you want to change original prescriber

When reprinting a prescription, if the number of pages used differs from the original prescription, the prescription will not be reprinted and the following message is displayed:

"The selected prescription(s) cannot be reprinted because the associated items do not fit on the same number of pages. If you need to reprint the prescription(s), you are advised to:

- 1. Cancel the original prescription(s) AMS/CMS only.
- 2.Re-prescribe all necessary items.
- 3.Contact the patient and/or dispenser(s).

ePharmacy (AMS/CMS) prescription containing n item signed on nn/nn/nnnn by "prescriber name""



Note - When reprinting a prescription with cancelled items,the current functionality remains the same i.e. Vision will not reprint the prescription if the cancelled items are selected, the prescription will be allowed to be reprinted if the cancelled items are deselected.

Cancelling an eAMS Item

- 1. From **Vision Consultation Manager Therapy** select the item requiring cancellation.
- 2. Select **Delete, Inactivate** or **Edit**, you are prompted "The item has already been sent electronically. A cancellation message will now be sent and you are advised to update the script accordingly"
- 3. Click **OK** to proceed.
- 4. The **Cancel Prescription Reason** window is opened. Select a reason from the list, the options are:
 - Prescribing error
 - Clinical contra-indication
 - Change to medication treatment regime
 - Clinical grounds
 - At the patient's request
 - At the pharmacist's request

• Additional text can be added in the available free text box (max 350 char).

С	ancel Prescription Reason	×
,	Please select a reason for this cancellation: Prescribing error Clinical contra-indication Change to medication treatment regime Clinical grounds At the patient's request At the pharmacist's request	
	Additional text:	
	Cancel	

5. Click **OK** to save and close.

Editing AMS Items

When acute medication items have been sent via AMS, it is possible to amend **some** of the medication fields. An amendment reason is recorded and a prescription amendment message is sent. This process has been updated and a picklist is now presented for selection.

- 1. From Vision Consultation Manager, Therapy select the item to edit.The following details can be edited:
 - Quantity
 - Prescriber Endorsements
 - Dosage (instructions for use)
 - Preparation (prescribed units)
- 2. Make the required changes, click **OK** to save and close.
- 3. The **Prescription Amendment Reason** window is displayed, select a reason from the list:
 - Previous error correction
 - Prescriber change
 - Prescriber addition
 - Pharmacist request
 - Patient request
 - Other
 - Additional text can be added in the available free text box (max 350 char).

Note – Additional text is Mandatory if Other is selected.

4. Click **OK** to save and close.

eAMS messages in Mail Manager

Practices should be regularly checking for rejected AMS messages in Mail Manager and reporting rejections to the INPS helpline at a regular interval (say weekly or fortnightly depending upon how many you are getting) so these can be investigated for the root cause.

The AMS messages to the ePharmacy store pass through Mail Manager with a message type of AMS Prescription.

Mail Manager has filters to hide successful AMS messages from view so that only rejected messages are shown. In Mail Manager, go to **Tools - Options - Message -Show Sent Electronic Prescriptions**. If you are AMS enabled, we recommend that you leave this option <u>unticked</u> so that only unsuccessful/error messages are displayed, as this will improve performance and declutter your screen. If this option is ticked, all messages including sent and complete AMS messages are displayed.

There are three successful status of AMS Prescription messages in Mail Manager Outgoing Mail :

- 1. Awaiting Transmission
- 2. Sent Awaiting Acknowledgement
- 3. Complete

In Incoming mail, you will see a Ready for Action message on a message type AMS Acknowledgement. There is no action you need take - this message automatically updates the outgoing one from Awaiting Acknowledgement to Complete.

eAMS messages contain full practice and patient details, including telephone numbers

eCMS

Workflow Overview

The following diagrams show the eCMS workflow processes. They display the eCMS cycle from a GP, Patient and Pharmacist perspective.

GP Perspective



Patient Perspective

8. After review, another CMS prescription master may be printed by the GP. The process recommences from point 3.

7. At the end of the CMS term, an End of Treatment Summary Report is received by the GP. The patient should also be reviewed by the GP.

> 6.During this period, the patient is under the care of the CP within the terms of their agreed pharmaceutical care package. Details of items dispensed are electronically sent to the GP.

5. The patient's subsequent items are dispensed from the CMS prescription at the CP, without need of further repeat prescriptions for the remainder of the medication term.

1. The patient registers for CMS at their Community Pharmacy.

> 4. An electronic request is sent to retrieve the details of the prescription. Once this is received, the pharmacist can dispense the item(s).

2. At the next encounter

with the patient, the GP can

issue a CMS prescription.

3. The patient presents at the CP with CMS

prescription master. The

CP scans the barcode on

the prescription which

verifies the UPN, patient

identity, patient CMS and the patient's registration

status.

Pharmacy Perspective



Activating eCMS

eCMS needs to be switched on and you will be advised how to do this. You must also have advanced printing enabled. If you are using eAMS you should already have advanced printing enabled. The following steps are required:

- Before going live with eCMS prescribing, it is recommended that you generate a test prescription message. See Mail Manager on screen help for further details.
- When a registration message is received, Vision checks to see if the pharmacy code contained in the message matches an existing pharmacy code in Vision. If a matching pharmacy is **not** found, or you have a pharmacy organisation listed **without** the pharmacy code, Vision creates a new Pharmacy. This means that you could have duplicate pharmacies created in Control Panel. It is therefore advisable that you add pharmacy codes to all existing pharmacies in Vision before CMS is enabled. See *Adding Pharmacy Codes* (page 24) for further details.

Adding Pharmacy Codes

When a registration message is received, Vision checks to see if the pharmacy code contained in the message matches an existing pharmacy code in Vision. If a matching pharmacy is **not** found, or you have a pharmacy organisation listed **without** the pharmacy code, Vision creates a new Pharmacy. This means that you could have duplicate pharmacies created in Control Panel. It is therefore advisable that you add pharmacy codes to all existing pharmacies in Vision before CMS is enabled.

- 1. In Control Panel, go to File Maintenance.
- 2. Click on the **Organisations** tab.
- 3. In the Pharmacy folder, right click on an existing pharmacy and select **Edit Organisation.**
- 4. In the Identifiers tab, click on Add.
- 5. From the Identifier Type drop down list, select **CP Contractor Code**.
- 6. In the Identifier Value field, enter the 4-digit pharmacy code.

Add - Identifier	
Identifier Type:	
CP Contractor Code	•
Organisation:	
	$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$
Identifier Value:	
1234	
OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp	

7. Press **OK** and **OK** again to save.

Note - You cannot delete a pharmacy contractor code for a pharmacy which has CMS registered patients.

Flagging Suitable eCMS Patients

As some of your clinical and administrative workload will be lightened if patients are registered for the eCMS scheme, you might like to flag patients who are potentially suitable for CMS (although this is not a mandatory process). This should act as a prompt for you during the consultation to review the patient for eCMS participation. There are two ways of flagging patients as potentially suitable for eCMS:

- Using the Populate CMS Suitability tool.
- Marking individual patients as suitable for CMS.

Other points to note:

- Suitable patients can be flagged before eCMS is enabled on your system.
- You must be part of the Clinical Managers security group to flag a patient as suitable for CMS.
- You can generate a report which lists all the patients suitable for CMS. See Search and Reports on screen help for further details.

Group Populating Patients Suitable for eCMS

The Populate CMS Suitability function allows you to mark patients as suitable within a specific patient group. You might like to review your chronic disease registers for patients potentially suitable for CMS. You can use the QoF audit groups to identify chronic disease patients and merge the groups together to create a definitive list of all chronic patients. You might also like to add a reminder to the flagged patients. The best way to do this would be to create the CMS Suitability report (see Search and Reports on screen help) and save the results to a group so that you can bulk add reminders from patient groups.

To populate patients as suitable for eCMS:

- 1. From the front screen of Vision, select Utilities Populate CMS Suitability.
- 2. At the Populate CMS Suitability screen, click on **Select** to display the Groups or Clinical Audit Search Browser.

Populate CMS Suitability									
This utility will mark active patients in the selected group as suitable for serial dispensing under CMS. Patients who have already had their CMS suitability flagged will not be updated.									
Sel	ect								
Selected Group: Patient Count:									
Reason for Change:									
Populate <u>C</u> lose <u>H</u> elp									

3. From the Groups or Clinical Audit Search Browser, select the required group for population. You can also enter a free text reason if desired. Click **OK**.

	Group	Υ <u></u>		CI	inical <u>A</u> udit 9	Search		
Name Description			Date	1E-DE	Inactive	Uperator eve	Category	
\$ASTODEN #ACTOD1	Asto Den	10	08/06/2007	15:35	NO No	515	User	
\$AS18E1	Ast8 ET	13	08/06/2007	15:34	NO	515	User	
\$A518E2	Asto EZ	331	08/06/2007	15:34	INO NI	515	User	
\$A518E3	4.001	0	08/06/2007	15:35	NO	515	User	
\$AST8NEG	Ast8 Neg	U	08/06/2007	15:35	No	SYS	User	
\$AST8NUM	Ast8 Num	1	08/06/2007	15:35	No	SYS	User	
\$ASTREG	Astma Register	348	08/06/2007	15:34	No	SYS	User	
\$ZZZDNATXT	Mhr With Dna In Freetext	0	17/05/2007	14:48	No	SYS	User	
ALL	Monitoring: Total Practice Population	5341	08/05/2007	13:01	No	SYS	User	
AST	Ast	905	21/05/2007	15:47	No	PRESCRIBIN	User	
ASTHMA	Monitoring: Asthma01 Register: The Practice Can Pr	326	08/05/2007	13:00	No	SYS	User	
ASTHMA1	Monitoring: Asthma01 Register: The Practice Can Pr	313	18/06/2007	13:25	No	SYS	User	
BP1	Monitoring: Bp01 Register: The Practice Can Produc	931	18/06/2007	13:24	No	SYS	User	
CHD	Monitoring: Chd01 Register: The Practice Can Produ	244	08/05/2007	13:00	No	SYS	User	
CHD1	Monitoring: Chd01 Register: The Practice Can Produ	244	18/06/2007	13:16	No	SYS	User	
COPD1	Monitoring: Copd01 Register: The Practice Can Prod	96	18/06/2007	13:25	No	SYS	User	
DEP1	Monitoring: Dep01 Register: Patients Diagnosed Wit	325	18/06/2007	13:26	No	SYS	User	
DM	Monitoring: Dm19 Register: The Practice Can Produ	99	08/05/2007	13:01	No	SYS	User	
DM1	Monitoring: Dm19 Register: The Practice Can Produ	100	18/06/2007	13:24	No	SYS	User	
HF1	Monitoring: Hf01 Register: The Practice Can Produc	61	18/06/2007	13:23	No	SYS	User	
SMOKE1	Monitoring: Smoke00 Register: Pts With Any Combina	1282	18/06/2007	13:27	No	SYS	User	
STBOKE1 ◀	Monitoring: Stroke01 Begister: The Practice Can Pr	115	18/06/2007	13:24	No	SYS	∐ser ▶	
Group Options Set Filter Clear Filter Befresh 23 Groups OK Cancel								

4. The details of the selected group are displayed, including the number of patients in the group. Press **Populate** to continue.

Populate CMS Suitability	×
This utility will mark active patients in the selected group as suitable for serial dispensing under CMS. Patients who have already had their CMS suitability flagged will not be updated.	
ASTHMA Monitoring: Asthma01 Register: The Practice Can Pr Select Selected Group: Patient Count: ASTHMA 326]
Reason for Change:	
<u>P</u> opulate <u>C</u> lose <u>H</u> elp	

5. Before the Suitability population is started, a warning message appears which states: "This option will mark active patients in the selected group as suitable for serial dispensing under CMS. Please note there is no undo facility. Are you sure you wish to continue?" Select **Yes** to continue.

Populate	e CMS Suitability 🛛 🕅					
This option will mark active patients in the selected group as suitable for serial dispensing Please note that there is no undo facility for this option.						
	Are you sure you wish to continue?					
	Yes No					

Note - Patients who are already CMS registered will not be marked as suitable.

6. After the population has finished, a confirmation message appears informing you that the population has completed and the number of patients that have been flagged as suitable for CMS.

Populate CMS Candidates						
⚠	Populate CMS Candidates completed successfully.					
	S					

Note - Patients must be Applied or Permanent and have a valid CHI number to be suitable for CMS.

- 7. Click **OK** then **Close** to finish.
- The patients are now flagged as suitable for CMS. This displays in Consultation Manager – Therapy, Consultation Manager – Patient Details and Registration – Consent. See *Viewing CMS Registration Status* (page 35) for further information.

	► Therapy									QOF
l	Current Scripts Repeats CMS 😫 🎽						T	1	\times	\checkmark
	Asthma medication review Due 08 December 2009					09	CMS Suita	able		
l			Print Date	Dispensed	Drug		L			

Flagging Individual Patients as Suitable for eCMS

You can flag patients suitable for eCMS on an individual patient basis from Patient Details in Consultation Manager or Registration.

- 1. In Consultation Manager, select the patient and ensure that a consultation is open.
- 2. Go to the Patient Details tab and select Preferences.

Appgintments Patient Select Patient Details Consultations Journal Eltered List Summary/Grid Tests Therapy Gyidelines	
Therapy	
Preferred Pharmacy :	Qhange
Acute Medication Service (AMS)	
Patient consents to: The sending of AMS prescriptions electronically	Change
Chronic Medication Service (CMS)	
CMS Unsuitable - updated on 01 Jun 2009 by Christine Green CMS Withdrawn from CP: LLOYDS Effective from: 20 May 2009	Change
Registration Identifiers Family Contacts > Preferences	

- 3. From the CMS section, you can see the patient's current CMS suitability status. There are three possibilities:
 - CMS Suitable
 - CMS Unsuitable
 - CMS Suitability Not Specified

The user who last updated the patient's suitability and the date and time are also displayed. If there are any notes detailing the reason for suitability change, the notes icon will display as active **1**. You can click on this to view the text.



You can also see the patient's CMS registration status from the CMS section in the preferences screen. There are three possibilities:

- Not CMS Registered
- CMS Registered
- CMS Registration Withdrawn

If a patient is CMS withdrawn, the notes button will display as active limit and contain the reason for withdrawal if it has been entered.



- 4. To change the patient suitability status, click on the change button
- 5. You can now select from the suitability options and add a note if required:

Patient Suitability for CMS		Save
CMS Suitable CMS Not Suitable		Cancel
Reason for Change		Help
new note	2	
	2	

- 6. Click Save to save the changes
- 7. The CMS Status now displays as CMS Suitable:



8. The suitability status is also displayed in the Therapy tab:

			I	Therapy					QOF
I	Cu	rren	t Scripts	Repeats	CMS	E\$ T	1 🎦 😿	\times	\checkmark
	Asthma medication review Due 08 December 2009						CMS Suita	able	
I			Print Date	Dispensed	Drug				

Changing Patient Suitability in Patient Details, Consultation Manager

You can change the suitability status of individual patients at any time:

- 1. In Consultation Manager, select the patient and ensure that a consultation is open.
- 2. Go to the Patient Details tab and select Preferences.
- 3. From the CMS section, you can see the patient's current CMS Suitability status. Click on **Change**.
- 4. Make your selection and optionally enter a free text Reason for Change.
- 5. Click **Save** and the new suitability status is displayed.

Appgintments Patient Select Patient Details Consultations Journal Eiltered List Summary/Grid Tests Therapy Gyidelines	
Therapy	
Preferred Pharmacy :Qhange.	_
Acute Medication Service (AMS) Point Consents Point Sublability for CMS Our Modicated Charge Did NS Subte Did NS Subte Reason for Charge Heb	
	_

Note – You cannot change the suitability status for more than one patient at a time.

Changing Patient Suitability from the Therapy tab, Consultation Manager

- 1. In Consultation Manager, select a patient and ensure that the consultation is open.
- 2. Choose the **Therapy** tab.
- 3. To change the suitability, click on **CMS Suitable**. From here, there is a direct link to the Patient Details, Preference tab.

Therapy Guidelines		
Add Medication Review	CMS Suitable	CMS Registered

- 4. From the CMS section, you can see the patient's current CMS Suitability status. Click on **Change**.
- 5. Make your selection and optionally enter a free text Reason for Change.
- 6. Click Save.
- 7. The new suitability displays on the Patient details screen and will show on the Therapy tab.
- 8. To view the changes on Therapy, select the Therapy tab and move your mouse over the CMS Suitable box. You can see when the change was made and by whom.

Patie <u>n</u> t Details <u>Consultations</u>	Journal Eilt	ered List <u>S</u> ummary/Grid	<u>T</u> ests	Therapy	G <u>u</u> idelines	
смз 😫 🎦 🍸	$\times \checkmark \mathbb{Q}$	1 🗊 🗇 🐃 🕇 🕏	» «	Add Medica	ition Review	CMS Suitable / CMS Registered
	lss Max	Dosage	Q	Preparation	Aut	horised Reperced Suitable - undated on 26 Jan 2010
EMOLLIENT crm	12	APPLY DAILY	100	mls	15/0	01/2010 02/01 by System Supervisor
		Notes for patient: patient				CMS Registered with CP: HUTCHINGS
		Info CMS Notes: dispensing inf	fo			Effective from: 19 May 2009

Changing Patient Suitability from Therapy - Add

You can change a patients suitability by selecting the CMS Tick Box for an the Therapy Add form. You are prompted with the following warning message:



Figure 1: CMS Warning Message

- Yes allows you to continue adding the eCMS prescription.
- **No** shows a warning message stating: *This patient has been marked as unsuitable for CMS. The CMS checkbox will be disabled.*

Note - Selecting **Yes** or **No** is saved for the remainder of the consultation and you are not prompted again.

• **Review Status** - opens the ePharmacy Patient Suitability screen, where you can change the patient's status. If the suitability status is still CMS Unsuitable, the CMS warning message appears again.

el ePharmacy	×
Patient Suitability for CMS CMS Suitability not Specified CMS Suitable	Save
CMS Unsuitable	
Reason for Change	Help

Figure 2: CMS Review Status

eCMS Registration and Patient Status

eCMS registration is an agreement between the patient and the Community Pharmacy within which the patient is agreeing to share clinical data to support their healthcare. Once the patient has registered at a pharmacy for eCMS, an electronic registration notification is sent from the Pharmacy to the message store, which is then retrieved by the practice and used to update the patient's eCMS registration status . Vision retrieves registration messages on a daily basis (see *eCMS Message Management* (page 55)).

If a patient decides that they no longer wish to be part of the eCMS scheme, they are entitled to withdraw by notifying the pharmacy. Once the pharmacy updates their system, a withdrawal message is sent and retrieved in much the same way as the original registration message.

Note Patients can register at another pharmacy as soon as they have deregistered/withdrawn from their previous pharmacy. If a patient withdraws and still has outstanding CMS prescriptions, neither the previous nor the new community pharmacist is authorised to dispense such items.

For you to issue a CMS prescription the patient must be eligible and registered. You are also able to flag potential patients as suitable for CMS to help with your records, but this has no bearing on CMS prescribing.

Eligible/Not Eligible

Vision determines patient eligibility for CMS automatically. For a patient to be eligible they must:

- Have a patient registration status of either Applied or Permanent.
- Have a valid CHI number.
- Not be a Private Patient.

If a patient is not eligible, they will not be able to register with a CP or be flagged as suitable for CMS in Vision.

Patient Suitability

Patient suitability status for CMS indicates whether the patient is a potential CMS participant. There are three possible suitability statuses:

- **CMS Suitable** the patient has been flagged as a potential CMS participant.
- **CMS Unsuitable** the patient has been flagged as unsuitable for CMS participation.
- **CMS Suitability Not Specified** suitability for this patient has not yet been considered.

Remember - The patient can still register with a CP regardless of suitability status in Vision.

Note – Patients will **not** be automatically flagged as suitable for CMS. You need to run the Suitability Group Population or manually flag the patient. See *Group Populating Patients Suitable for eCMS* (page 26) and *Flagging Individual Patients as Suitable for eCMS* (page 28). This can be done before or after eCMS has been enabled on your system.

CMS Registration Status

There are three possible CMS registration statuses:

- Not CMS Registered not currently registered with a CP for CMS.
- **CMS Registered** when the patient has registered with a Community Pharmacy for eCMS, on receipt of the registration message, the patient CMS status changes to "Registered".
- CMS Withdrawn patients can be only be withdrawn from the eCMS scheme by the Community Pharmacy. If you want to stop prescribing a CMS item(s), you are able to cancel CMS items if necessary.

Note – When patients have left the practice and have a registration status of Transferred Out, they are not automatically withdrawn from the eCMS scheme.

Viewing CMS Registration Status and Suitability

The eCMS patient registration status and suitability are displayed in the following three places within Vision:

1. **Consultation Manager - Therapy Tab** Registration and suitability status displays in the Therapy tab in Consultation Manager as follows:

Ies	ts F Therapy	Guidelines				1
»	« Add Medic	ation Review	a	MS Registere	d	
Q	Preparation	Authon	ea	Frequency	EX	piry Date
1344	capsule(s)	14/01/0	9	4 weeks	01/	07/09

2. **Patient Details - Preferences** You can also view eCMS registration and suitability status from Patient Details – Preferences in Consultation Manager. If the patient is eCMS Registered, the CMS Pharmacy is also displayed.

ntments Patient Select Patient Details Consultations Journal Eiltered List Summary/Grid Iests Therapy Guidelines	
herapy	
Preferred Pharmacy :	Change
cute Medication Service (AMS)	
latient consents to: he sending of AMS prescriptions electronically	Change
hronic Medication Service (CMS)	
CAIS Unsuitable - updated on 01 Jun 2009 by Christine Green	Change
CMS Withdrawn from CP: LLDYDS Effective from: 20 May 2009	

Note – You can click on CMS Registered on the Therapy tab to go directly to the Patient Details, Preference tab.

3. **Registration – Consent.** To view the eCMS Registration and Suitability Status from the Registration module, select the patient and click on the Consent tab. If the patient is eCMS Registered, the CMS Pharmacy is also displayed.

Registration Details	×
Incomplete Details Incomplete RegLinks	
Personal Address Registration <u>Notes</u> Other I <u>ds</u> Family <u>Consent</u> Consent refused for GPRD Data Collection: Consent refused for THIN Data Collection: Acute Medication Service (AMS) Patient consents to:	
The sending of AMS prescriptions electronically	
Chronic Medication Service (CMS) CMS Suitable - updated on 08 Jun 2009 by Carol Saturn Change Not CMS Registered	
OK Cancel Con <u>t</u> acts <u>H</u> elp	

Note - You can also create a CMS Registration report and a CMS Suitability report. To list suitability and registration statuses See Registrations Report and CMS Suitability Report in search and reports on screen help.

CMS Prescribing

CMS prescribing has all the attributes expected of a repeat item with the addition of a **medication term**, which specifies the total duration of the CMS item, and a **Dispensing Frequency**, which defines the period between dispensing events. The prescribing process is as follows:

- The GP creates a CMS item with medication term and dispensing frequency specified. The patient must be CMS registered.
- The GP selects the CMS items to be printed.
- The GP prints the prescription and a message is sent to the ePharmacy store detailing the CMS items.
- The CMS GP10 is given to the patient.

- The patient takes the GP10 to the CP where they are registered.
- The CP scans the GP10 and the CMS message is retrieved from the ePharmacy message store.
- Medication can now be dispensed and Dispensing information can be retrieved by the GP practice after the CP has claimed for items dispensed.



Therapy - CMS Filter

All **CMS items** ("masters") are managed from the CMS filter in the Therapy tab in Consultation Manager. All the usual functionality exists as with conventional repeat prescription management (i.e. re-authorise/inactivate/select and deselect All). You will notice that CMS items display with a different icon \clubsuit , and all other relevant CMS details are displayed in the column views in the CMS filter.

A	pp <u>o</u> in	itments Pa	itient Select P	atie <u>n</u> t Details [<u>C</u> onsultations] <u>J</u> ournal	Eiltered List Summary	/Grid	<u>I</u> ests	Therapy Gu	idelines			
0	Currer	nt Scripts	Repeats	смз 😫 🎦 🎦 😿 🗙 🗸	/ 🖻 🗿 🚭 🐂 🛛	18		Add Medication	Review	MS Registere	4	
		Print Date	Dispensed	Drug	Dosage	Q	Preparati	Authorised	Frequency	Expiry Date	Prescriber	Next Alert
		18/02/09	Not Dispensed	🖌 🚓 ALUPENT sf oral soln 10mg/5ml	1X5ML SPOON 4 TIMES/DAY	6720	mls	18/02/09	4 weeks	20/01/10	CGREE	
		18/02/09	Not Dispensed	🕰 ASPIRIN ec tab 75mg	TAKE ONE DAILY	168	tablet(s)	18/02/09	4 weeks	05/08/09	CGREE	
		16/01/09	Not Dispensed	ANTAZOLINE HCI + ANTAZOLINE SULPHATE eye drp 0.05%+0.5%	ONE DROP 2-3 TIMES/DAY	30	mls	16/01/09	4 weeks	03/07/09	CGREE	23/02/09
Œ		16/01/09	19/01/09 (2)	Gauze Swabs BP 198 Typ 13 ligh non steril 12 ply 7.5cmx7.5cm	AS DIRECTED	100	piece(s)	16/01/09	4 weeks	03/07/09	CGREE	26/01/09
Œ		16/01/09	14/01/09(1)	A SALBUTAMOL mr cap 4mg	TAKE ONE TWICE DAILY	336	capsule(s)	14/01/09	1 week	01/07/09	CGREE	11/02/09
Œ		16/01/09	14/01/09(1)	A RAMIPRIL caps 1.25mg	TAKE ONE DAILY	168	capsule(s)	14/01/09	1 week	01/07/09	CGREE	
E		16/01/09	14/01/09(1)	Ap DIPROBASE crm	APPLY AS NEEDED	50	gram(s)	14/01/09	1 week	01/07/09	CGREE	
			14/01/09	the Dispensing Event								

Note - CMS items can be viewed from the Current, Scripts and CMS filters. Dispensing events are only visible from the CMS filter within the CMS item.

Dispensing Information in Consultation Manager

As dispensing information is retrieved, the patient record is automatically updated. You can see dispensing information from the CMS filter in the Therapy tab. In the example below you can see that there have been three dispensing events for Diprobase Cream.

Adding a CMS Prescription

CMS items can be added from the **CMS** or **Scripts Filter** in Consultation Manager – Therapy.

- 1. In Consultation Manager, select a patient and ensure that a Consultation is open.
- 2. Click on the Therapy tab and select the **CMS filter**.
- 3. Select the **Therapy Add** form in the usual way (i.e. press F4/F8, start to type etc). You can also choose **CMS New** or **Ctrl + M**.
- 4. Find the drug as usual.
- 5. You must tick the CMS box on the Therapy Add form. If you do not tick this box, the Medication Term, Dispensing Frequency and Alert boxes will not be visible.

Note – The CMS box is disabled if any of the CMS exclusions apply. See *eCMS Exclusions* (page 53) for further information.

6. The CMS Item Add form has the following additional fields which you should check/complete:

🏘 CMS Item - Ad	d		📙 ОК	X Cancel ? Help
Date Prescribed:	Pr <u>e</u> scriber:	Source of Drug:		🗖 P/Admin 🗖 Dispensed
03 February 2009	Dr Michael Neptune	In practice	-	🗖 Private 🔽 Print Script
Drug: ₿+0 ATENIX tabs 25mg				CMS 🔽
Quantity: Prepare 336 [tablet]	ation: 🛱 S.	Pac <u>k</u> Size:	Treat Days:	Medication Term: 48 weeks
Dosage: TAKE ONE DAILY	TAKE ONE DAILY			Dispensing Frequency: 4 weeks
Action Group: Beta-adrenoceptor blo	pocking drugs		-	1 month
No drug allergy sta	atus recorded.			

- **Date Prescribed** The date prescribed is always today's date. You are not permitted to add a CMS item for any other date.
- **Medication Term** is the total duration of the CMS care term. Currently, you can select from 24 or 48 weeks only. The current default is set at 24 weeks. To change the default, see Therapy options.

Me	Medication Term:						
2	4 weeks 📃 💌						
.24	1 weeks						
48	3 weeks						

Note – items with different medication terms will be printed on different prescription forms.

• **Dispensing Frequency** – Allows you to set a dispensing frequency. You can select from 1,2,3,4,6,8 and 12 weeks.

Dispensing Frequency:	
1 week 📃 💌	
1 week	
2 weeks	l.
3 weeks	
4 weeks	F
6 weeks	Ľ.
8 weeks	
12 weeks	

• **Total Quantity** – The total drug quantity is automatically calculated according to the medication term and dosage (obtained from the maximum daily dosage in the Gemscript dictionary). If this cannot be calculated e.g. if the dosage instructs "use as needed", the Quantity box displays in yellow:

🐴 CMS Item - Add						
Date Prescribed:	Pr <u>e</u> scriber:					
03 February 2009	Dr Michael Neptune					
Drug: 8+0						
ATENIX tabs 25mg						
Quantity: <u>P</u> repa	ration: 🗇					
336 tablet	(s)					
Dosage:						

You can make the following calculation by typing into the Quantity box then pressing enter:

7* [Medication term] *[daily quantity]=total quantity

For example, the calculation of a paracetamol caps 500 CMS item with a medication term of 24 weeks and a dosage of two caps 4 times a day would be calculated as follows:

7*24*8 = 1344 total quantity.

You can also use the "/" character as a divisor operand, for example when calculating how many inhalers to prescribe when the Dosage is specified as INHALE 2 DOSES 4 TIMES A DAY and the Preparation is a single 200 dose inhaler:

[No. of doses]*[Daily frequency]*[Days in a week]*[Medication term] / [No. of doses in the item preparation] = total quantity

i.e. 2*4*7*24/200 = 6.72 (which you would round up to 7)

You can also manually enter the total quantity if you wish.

 Alert – You can enter a time period in the Alert field which prompts you when a dispensing event is overdue. This will generate a patient alert if a dispensing update has not been received within the time period specified. You can enter the usual date shortcuts of d, m, y. If you want to be prompted about dispensing alerts, it is advised that you enter a duration which matches the dispensing frequency, or slightly more to allow for late dispensing. See CMS Overdue Dispensing Alert (page 52) Alert:

 CMS Notes – You can add any optional free text notes to the CMS item by selecting the notes icon . This text will be transmitted as part of the CMS Prescription Message and will be visible to the CP. This text does not print on the GP10 form.

CMS Notes	X
Please enter additional not	es for CMS:
Add CMS notes here	
	OK Cancel

Note – You can set user defaults for Medication Term and Dispensing Frequency in Consultation – Options Set up. See *eCMS Therapy Options* (page 54).

7. Once the relevant fields have been checked/completed, click OK. The usual prescribing safety drug /allergy checks will take place and the item is added to the CMS list with a status of **Not Printed**.

Appointments Patient Select P	atient Details Consultations Journal Fi	iltered List Tests 🕨 Thera	ру 🛛 (Guidelines Problems	s SCI Gatew	vay <u>L</u> inks
Current Scripts Repeats	CMS 😫 🎦 🎦 😿 🗙 🗸 🛙	a 🗊 🗇 🐂 f 🕏 🤉	» «	K Medication review	v Due 30 July	2009
CMS Candidate						
Print Date Dispensed	Drug	Dosage	Q	Preparation	Authorised	Frequency
Not Printed Not Dispensed	🗛 ATENIX tabs 25mg	TAKE ONE DAILY	336	tablet(s)	03/02/09	4 weeks
11						

Duplicate CMS Items

When printing a drug that is already listed as an active AMS or CMS item, you are prompted with the following message:

There are existing AMS/CMS items for this drug. Are you sure you wish to prescribe this CMS item?

Select **Yes** to continue or **No** to cancel.

Pharmacy Duplicate Medication							
Print Date	Dispensed		Drug	Dosage	Quantity	Authorised	Expiry Date
16/02/09	17/02/09 (2)	4	ACCOLATE tabs 20mg	TAKE ONE TWICE DAILY	336	16/02/09	03/08/09
Are you sure you want to prescribe this CMS item?							
Are you sure you want to prescribe this CMS item?							

If any previous items are non-dm+d, they are excluded from the duplicate verification. The details are presented on the ePharmacy Duplicate medication screen along with any matched duplicate items.

Printing the CMS GP10

To print the CMS GP10:

- 1. Select the CMS item(s) in the usual way (i.e. click on them or use select all).
- 2. Then press **F9** or select the printer icon ⁽²⁾. Prescription Manager displays the items to be printed.

Prescription Manager - Add	Print Be-Print	📑 Cancel 🚺 Setup	X Cl <u>o</u> se 7 <u>H</u> elp
Prescriptions Print Age Authorised Signatory: Dr Michael Neptune	Reorder Form Patient Summary	Labels	List Show prescriptions from last: 2 days Clear >> <<
Active - simple Active Recent Rejected [0] Search All	Errors		
Date Clinician Drug/Advice		Dosage TAKE ONE DAILY	Quantity Iss 336

3. Press **F9** or print again to print the CMS GP10. A prescribing message is automatically generated for each prescription form. This is sent to the ePharmacy store at the next scheduled transmission.



The following details for eCMS printing should be noted:

- CMS Items are printed separately from other types of prescriptions.
- No more than 3 CMS Items can be printed on a single prescription form.
- All the CMS Items on a prescription form must have the same Medication Term, i.e. items with 24 weeks medication term will print on a different prescription from items with a 48 week medication term.
- If you add a new eCMS item it will not automatically appear in the Prescription Manager screen unless you select it specifically and press print.

Printing Contraceptive Endorsements

As part of eCMS, there is no longer an automatic endorsement of contraceptive drugs. The following applies:

- Drugs prescribed for contraceptive purposes only, do not print or send a message with the following endorsement: <For Contraceptive Use>.
- Drugs prescribed for either contraception or for other uses are endorsed based on the drug class selected. By selecting the drug class 'Contraceptives' the medication is endorsed, otherwise it is suppressed. For example, selecting Dianette from the Contraceptive drug class will endorse the prescription. Choosing Dianette from the 'Hormones for treatment of acne' drug class will not endorse the prescription.

• Drugs eligible for endorsement will print on a separate GP10.

Acute Therapy	/ - Add			🔛 ОК
Date Prescribed:	Prescriber:		Source of Drug:	
26 October 2009	Dr Carol Norwood		In practice	•
Drug: 8+8				
DIANETTE tabs				
Quantity: Prepare 63 [tablet(ation: 🗃 s)			Pack Size: Treat Days:
Dosage: TAKE ONE AS DIREC	CTED	TAKE ONE AS DIRECTED		ă 🖬
Hormone treatments for	or acne			
Hormone treatments for Combined hormonal co	or ache ontraceptives			

Reprinting CMS GP10

You are able to reprint the CMS GP10 when the aim is to provide the patient with an identical copy of a CMS prescription form, e.g. if the previous copy was jammed in the printer.

Please note the following:

- When reprinting a prescription, you cannot reprint the prescription if the selected prescriber in Prescription Manager differs from the original signer of the prescription.
- When reprinting a prescription, if the number of pages used differs from the original, the prescription will not be reprinted.

To reprint an item:

- 1. From the CMS filter in the Therapy tab, select the CMS item.
- 2. Click on the **Show Prescriptions** icon.
- 3. Select the item in Prescription Manager.
- 4. Click on the **Reprint** button.

Appointments Patient Select Patient Details Consultations Journal Filter	red List 🛛 Tests 🕨	• Therapy Gu	idelines Problem	s 🛛 SCI Gatewa	y [<u>L</u> inks]
Current Scripts Repeats CMS 🛃 🎦 🍸 😿 🗙 🗸 📬	g) 🚭 🐝 🕇	⊟ & ≫ ≪	Add Medication P	Review CMS	Candidate
Print Date Dispensed Drug D)osage	Q	Preparation	Author $ abla$	Frequency Expiry E
04/02/09 Not Dispensed 4 CALENDULA crm 4% AF	PPLY 2-3 TIMES/D)AY 25 g	ram(s)	04/02/09	1 week 22/07/0
🗌 31/01/08 Not Dispensed 🚓 ASPIRIN ec tab 75mg TA	AKE ONE DAILY	168 ta	ablet(s)	30/01/09	1 week 17/07/0
<					>
		1	1	1	ſ
Prescription Manager - Add	l Erint	🔂 <u>R</u> e-Print	🏥 🗋 🔛	Set <u>u</u> p 🗙 Cl	<u>o</u> se <mark>?H</mark> elp
- Prescriptions			- Labels	List	
Print Age	E Beorder I	Form	E Drug	Show p	rescriptions from last:
					Clear
Authorised Signatory:	Patient S	ummary	E Bag: 1 ;	÷	
Dr Michael Neptune		-			
Active - simple Active Recent Rejected [0] Search All Errors					
Send Print Date Clinician Drug/Advice			Dosag	e	Quantity Iss
🖃 🕙 🖉 Sent Printed 🗹 🏘 ePharmacy (CMS) prescription conta	ining 1 item.				
Printed 🗹 🏘 04/02/09 MN CALENDULA crm 4%			APPLY	2-3 TIMES/DA	Y 25

- 5. Select a Prescription Reprint Reason.
- 6. Click OK.
- 7. A copy of the CMS GP10 is printed. No further CMS message is sent.

Note - If a single item needs reprinting, the GP10 on which it was originally printed will be reprinted in its entirety.

Reprinting Restrictions

When reprinting an ePharmacy AMS or CMS prescription, you cannot reprint the prescription if the selected prescriber in Prescription Manager differs from the original signer of the prescription or is no longer valid in Vision. Where this happens, the following is displayed:

"The selected signatory does not match that of the original prescription(s). Please select the original signing clinician in the list of signatory and reprint the prescription(s).

ePharmacy (AMS/CMS) prescription containing n item signed on nn/nn/nnnn by "prescriber name""

!	Reprint failed.
0	More details
	The selected signatory does not match that of the original prescription(s). Please select the original signing clinician in the list of signatory and reprint the prescription(s).
Ξ	Extended error information
	ePharmacy (CMS) prescription containing 1 item, signed on 14/08/2013 by Dr Mel Earth, (Type: 663, Id: 185)

AMS Reprinting where original prescriber is still valid

You should change the authoriser in Prescription Manager and continue to reprint.

Where the original prescriber is no longer available/valid, you are now asked to manually cancel the prescription and re-prescribe:

"The selected signatory does not match that of the original prescription(s). The original signing clinician is no longer a valid signatory. If you need to reprint the prescription(s), you are advised to:

1. Cancel the original prescription(s) - AMS/CMS only.

2.Re-prescribe all necessary items.

3.Contact the patient and/or dispenser(s).

ePharmacy (AMS/CMS) prescription containing n item signed on nn/nn/nnnn by "prescriber name""



AMS Reprinting where you want to change original prescriber

When reprinting a prescription, if the number of pages used differs from the original prescription, the prescription will not be reprinted and the following message is displayed:

"The selected prescription(s) cannot be reprinted because the associated items do not fit on the same number of pages. If you need to reprint the prescription(s), you are advised to:

- 1. Cancel the original prescription(s) AMS/CMS only.
- 2.Re-prescribe all necessary items.
- 3.Contact the patient and/or dispenser(s).

ePharmacy (AMS/CMS) prescription containing n item signed on nn/nn/nnnn by "prescriber name""



Note - When reprinting a prescription with cancelled items,the current functionality remains the same i.e. Vision will not reprint the prescription if the cancelled items are selected, the prescription will be allowed to be reprinted if the cancelled items are deselected.

Reorder Forms

eCMS items are printed on the therapy reorder form with [CMS] next to the drug name along with the due for renewal date. CMS and Preferred pharmacy are printed on the forms.

Printing Newly Added CMS Items At Another Time

If you are adding CMS items in advance of printing (e.g. transferring their repeats to CMS in anticipation of future printing of CMS items), Vision will prompt you that there are unprinted items. This message will appear for 48 hours after the script has been added, so care needs to be taken if you do not want to print them on that date. Click "continue WITHOUT printing". When you wish to print at a later date, go back into the patient, to the CMS tab, press the printer icon / F9 and click on the ALL tab which appears in prescription manager at the bottom of the screen. Select the items to be printed and press F9 / print and the scripts will be printed with the updated date – which also updates in the scripts screen / and journal.

Dispensing Events

Dispensing events display with the symbol. You can view the date of the last CMS dispensing event from the CMS filter in the Therapy tab. The number of dispensing events appears in brackets next to the CMS Item. You can look at each dispensing event by clicking on the + next to the CMS item. These are read only entries and do not display in the Scripts filter.

App <u>o</u> i	ntment	s Pal	tient Select	Patient	Details	Consu	Itations	Journa	I Eiltered List	Summ	ary/Grid	Iest	s 🕨 Therapy	Guidelines			
Curre	nt S	cripts	Repeats	CMS	₽\$	7 1		×、	/ 咱間 @	5 m	目的	»	« Add Medic	ation Review	CMS	Registered	
	Print	Date	Dispensed	Drug					Dosage			Q	Preparation	Authoris	ed F	requency	Expiry Date
•	14/01	1/09	20/01/09 (2	PA	NADOL	. caps 5	00mg		TAKE 1 OF TIMES/DA	R 2 4 AY		1344	capsule(s)	14/01/05	9 4	weeks	01/07/09
	14/01	1/09	20/01/09 (3	DIF	ROBA	SE crm			APPLY AS	NEEDER	D	50	gram(s)	14/01/05	9 4	weeks	01/07/09
			20/01/09	# Dis	pensing	Event											
			15/01/09	# Dis	pensing	Event											
			14/01/09	to Dis	pensing	Event											

Reauthorising CMS Items

To reauthorise a CMS prescription, which has not yet expired:

- 1. In **Vision Consultation Manager**, select a patient and open a consultation.
- 2. Select the repeat dispensing item to be reauthorised. Click the reauthorisation icon.
- 3. You are prompted: "The CMS Item (drug name) can still be dispensed at the pharmacy. Do you wish to send a cancellation message to prevent further issues? This action cannot be undone. Yes, No, Abort".
 - **Yes** The original CMS item is inactivated, a new active copy is made and a cancellation message is sent.
 - **No** The original repeat dispensing item remains active, a new active copy is made.
 - Abort Cancels the reauthorisation
- 4. Click the relevant button to make your selection.

Note – If the CMS item is not cancellable (eg it has not been sent, is already cancelled or expired) the process is unchanged. No cancellation message is sent

- 5. The item is now ready to be issued.
- 6. On finalising the item, the prescribed and repeat until date will be recalculated using the consultation date.
- 7. If the original CMS item is active, it is changed to inactive.

Note – A CMS cancellation message is **not** sent.

Important Information about Deleting, Amending or Cancelling CMS Items

Occasionally a drug is cancelled or amended some time after the item is dispensed. In this scenario the pharmacy has already requested and retrieved the prescription message from the message store. They are unable to receive any amendments or cancellations made at a later stage as this type of information is delivered to a pharmacy when the original message was requested and downloaded. It is therefore extremely important that the practice inform the pharmacy e.g. over the phone, of any amendments or cancellations and issue a new prescription for the patient.

Editing CMS Items

You might want to edit a CMS item, for instance, when the strength of a drug needs to be increased:

Editing Unprinted CMS Items

You are able to edit a CMS drug item that has not yet been printed without restriction by right clicking on the item and selecting edit.

Editing CMS Items that have been printed and sent

Editing printed CMS items is not permitted as such. However, if you right click and select edit on a printed item, you will be given the opportunity to cancel and create a new CMS item:

- 1. Right click on the CMS item.
- 2. Select Edit.
- 3. When the following message appears;

You have elected to edit a printed/sent CMS item. Editing a printed/sent item will result in the original medication being inactivated, the original prescription being cancelled and a new amended medication being created. The patient will no longer be able to collect the original drug. Are you sure you wish to edit the selected printed/sent CMS item?

Select **Yes** to proceed. If you select **No**, then you are returned to the edit dialog.

- 4. You must fill in a cancellation reason.
- 5. Click **OK**. A cancellation message will be sent for the original item
- 6. The add item form appears and you can add the new CMS item.
- 7. A new CMS prescription message will be sent when the prescription is printed.

Note – It is not possible to edit dispensing events. These are displayed as read only entries in the CMS filter.

Cancelling CMS Items

You are able to cancel CMS items by selecting them and clicking on the inactivate \checkmark button as with conventional repeat masters. For instance, you might want to cancel a CMS item for which the patient is having adverse side effects. You are not able to

reactivate a CMS item once it has been cancelled/inactivated. You should note the following for cancelling printed and unprinted CMS items:

Cancelling/Inactivating Printed CMS Items

When attempting to cancel any CMS item(s) which have already been printed, you are prompted with the following warning:

You have elected to inactivate one or more printed/sent CMS items. Inactivating a printed/sent item will result in the medication being cancelled. The patient will no longer be able to collect this drug and it will not be possible to reactivate this item. Are you sure you wish to inactivate the selected printed/sent CMS item(s)?

If you select **Yes**, the **Cancel Prescription Reason** window is opened. Select a reason from the list, the options are:

- Prescribing error
- Clinical contra-indication
- Change to medication treatment regime
- Clinical grounds
- At the patient's request
- At the pharmacist's request
- Additional text can be added in the available free text box (max 350 char).

Click **OK** to save and close.

Cancelling/Inactivating Unprinted CMS items

When attempting to cancel a CMS item(s) which has **not** yet been printed, you are prompted with the following warning:

You have elected to inactivate one or more CMS items. It is not possible to reactivate CMS items. Are you sure you wish to inactivate the selected CMS item(s)?

Click Yes to Continue.

The **Cancel Prescription Reason** window is opened. Select a reason from the list, the options are:

- Prescribing error
- Clinical contra-indication
- Change to medication treatment regime
- Clinical grounds
- At the patient's request
- At the pharmacist's request

• Additional text can be added in the available free text box (max 350 char).



Click **OK** to save and close.

Display Inactive/Cancelled CMS Items

You can view inactive/cancelled CMS items from Therapy – CMS filter in Consultation Manager:

- 1. From the Therapy tab, select the CMS filter.
- 2. Make sure the Filter Inactive Repeats button $\fbox{2}$ is de-pressed.
- 3. Inactive CMS items appear with the $\frac{4}{3}$ symbol next to the Drug name.

Appointments Patient Select Patient Details Consultations Journal F	iltered List 🗍 Tests 🕩 Ther	apy Guidelines I				
Current Scripts Repeats CMS 😫 🎬 🏝 😿 X 🗸 🖆 🗊 🗁 🐃 🖻 比 » «						
Print Date Dispensed Drug	Dosage	Q Preparation				
🗌 Not Printed Not Dispensed 🞪 ASACOL MR tabs 400mg	TAKE ONE 3 TIMES/DAY	504 tablet(s)				
🗌 02/02/09 Not Dispensed 🏘 CALENDULA crm 4%	APPLY 2-3 TIMES/DAY	25 gram(s)				
31/01/08 Not Dispensed A CALENDULA crm 4%	APPLY 2-3 TIMES/DAY	25 gram(s)				
🔲 31/01/08 Not Dispensed 🐴 ASPIRIN ec tab 75mg	TAKE ONE DAILY	168 tablet(s)				
31/01/08 Not Dispensed A LEVOTHYROXINE tabs 25micrograms	TAKE ONE EACH MORNING	168 tablet(s)				
31/01/08 Not Dispensed A PARACETAMOL + CODEINE PHOSPHATE caps 500mg + 30mg	TAKE 1 OR 2 4 TIMES/DAY	1344 capsule(s)				
30/11/08 Not Dispensed A SALBUTAMOL mr cap 4mg	TAKE ONE TWICE DAILY	336 capsule(s)				

Note - It is still possible to receive dispensing information for cancelled CMS items i.e. if the dispensing event took place before the CMS item was cancelled but the claim from the CP was not submitted until after cancellation.

Deleting CMS Items

You are able to delete CMS items, but this should **only** be done if you have made a genuine mistake and you are certain that the medication has never been dispensed. All deleted information is recorded against the Vision audit trail.

Deleting Unprinted CMS items

You can elect to delete a CMS item that has not yet been printed without restriction by right clicking on the item and selecting Delete. You are required to enter a reason for deletion. (N.B. This is a generic audit requirement, as with conventional prescribing, and not specific to CMS.)

Deleting Printed CMS items

You are able to delete a CMS drug item after it has been printed by right clicking on the item and selecting delete. You are then prompted with the following warning:

You have elected to delete a printed/sent CMS item. Deleting a printed/sent item will result in the original medication being cancelled. The patient will no longer be able to collect this drug. Are you sure you wish to delete the selected printed/sent CMS item?

If you select No, you are returned to the item; otherwise, after selecting Yes, the **Cancel Prescription Reason** window is opened. Select a reason from the list, the options are:

- Prescribing error
- Clinical contra-indication
- Change to medication treatment regime
- Clinical grounds
- At the patient's request
- At the pharmacist's request
- Additional text can be added in the available free text box (max 350 char).

Click **OK** to save and close.

Note - the reason for inactivation will be used as the reason for cancellation included in the cancellation message

The associated item is still visible from Prescription Manager but is greyed out and marked as deleted:

Prescription Manager - Add	💼 Print 🛛 💼 Be-Print 🏩 Cancel 🔲 Setup 🗙 Close	? <u>H</u> elp
Prescriptions Print Age Authorised Signatory: Dr John Mcallister	Reorder Form Patient Symmary	tions from last:
Active - simple Active Recent Rejected [1] Search All Errors		
Send Print Date Clinician Drug/Advice	Dosage	Quantity Iss
🗈 😨 🖉 Sent 💿 Printed 🔲 💱 ePharmacy (CMS) prescription contain	ning 2 items.	
Printed Pri	AS DIRECTED 1 [DELETED] TAKE 1 OR 2 AS DIRECT 1	68 0 500 0

Deleting CMS Dispensing Events

Dispensing Events will only be deleted as a result of the associated CMS Item being deleted i.e. when you delete a CMS item, all associated Dispensing Events are deleted as a result.

CMS Overdue Dispensing Alert

The overdue dispensing alert notifies you when dispensing information has not been received since the last dispensing event (or date printed if first issue) plus the duration entered in the alert criteria. This does not have to be set for every patient but might be useful for monitoring specific patients.

🏘 CMS Item - Add	🛃 ОК	X Cancel ? Help
Date Prescribed: Prescriber:	Source of Drug:	□ P/Admin □ Djspensed
06 February 2009 Dr Michael Neptune	In practice	🗖 Private 🔽 Print Script
Drug: ATENOLOL tabs 25mg		CMS 🔽
Quantity: Preparation: Image: Constraint of the second se	Pack Size: Ireat Days:	Medication Term: 24 weeks
Dosage: TAKE ONE DAILY		Dispensing Frequency: 1 week
Action Group:		Alert:
Beta-adrenoceptor blocking drugs	<u>×</u>	
No drug allergy status recorded.		

In the example above, the last issue date was 06.01.09, and the alert will appear if no dispensing update is received by 06.02.09.

If you re-authorise a standard repeat that has an alert attached and make it into a CMS repeat, the overdue date is calculated from the date dispensed on the new CMS item.

Adding an alert after the CMS item has been entered

You can add an overdue dispensing alert to an individual CMS any time after it has been added to the patient record, even if it has already had dispensing events.

- 1. In the Therapy tab, select the CMS filter.
- 2. Right click on item in CMS filter and select **Set overdue dispensing alert**.
- 3. At the CMS overdue dispensing alert window, enter the time period for which you would like the alert to display in the Interval box. You can enter **d** for day or **m** for month. The date the alert will be triggered on displays in the bottom right hand corner.

CMS Over due Dispensing Alert							
Interval: 4d							
If the medication is not dispensed, the Overdue Dispensing Alert will be triggered or:							
Disponding Alore Mills	io anggorod on.	19/06/2009					
	ок	Cancel					

4. Click OK to save.

Note - The overdue dispensing alert can be removed at any time by selecting **Set overdue dispensing alert** and blanking out the interval.

Overdue Dispensing Alert - Alerts Pane

When a CMS item becomes overdue for dispensing, a warning is displayed in the Alerts pane in Consultation Manager under the heading CMS Item(s) Overdue for Dispensing. You can double click on the item to view it in the CMS filter.

Overdue Dispensing Report

You can generate a report listing all the patients who have outstanding dispensing alerts. See Search and Reports on screen help - CMS Overdue Dispensing Report for instructions on running this report.

eCMS Exclusions

The following items are outside the scope of eCMS:

Medication	Types of Prescribing		
Medication excluded from eCMS includes:	The following prescribing types cannot be executed as part of eCMS:		
Non-FP10 drugs	Bulk prescribing		
Discontinued drugs	• Prescription forms other than GP10		
• Oxygen	Private Prescriptions		
Handwritten drugs	NHS24 Prescribing		
• Schedule 1, 2, 3 and 4 Controlled	Out of Hours Prescribing		
drugs	• Dispensing by dispensing doctors		
Cytotoxics	(however, dispensing doctors will require the ability to prescribe		
Patients	using CMS functionality).		
See eCMS Registration and Patient			
Status (page 33)			
Status (page 33) Prescribers	Other exclusions		
Status (page 33) Prescribers The following prescribers are not able to markets are 2000 and 20000 and 2000 and 20000 and 20	Other exclusions Other prescribing exclusions include:		
Status (page 33) Prescribers The following prescribers are not able to produce an eCMS prescription:	Other exclusions Other prescribing exclusions include: • Private prescription		
Status (page 33) Prescribers The following prescribers are not able to produce an eCMS prescription: • Nurse Prescribers	Other exclusions Other prescribing exclusions include: • Private prescription • Personally administered		
Status (page 33) Prescribers The following prescribers are not able to produce an eCMS prescription: • Nurse Prescribers • Supplementary Prescribers	Other exclusions Other prescribing exclusions include: • Private prescription • Personally administered • Dispensed		
Status (page 33) Prescribers The following prescribers are not able to produce an eCMS prescription: • Nurse Prescribers • Supplementary Prescribers • Dentists	Other exclusions Other prescribing exclusions include: • Private prescription • Personally administered • Dispensed • Source of drug is other than In		
Status (page 33) Prescribers The following prescribers are not able to produce an eCMS prescription: • Nurse Prescribers • Supplementary Prescribers • Dentists • Hospital Consultants	Other exclusions Other prescribing exclusions include: • Private prescription • Personally administered • Dispensed • Source of drug is other than In Practice		
Status (page 33) Prescribers The following prescribers are not able to produce an eCMS prescription: • Nurse Prescribers • Supplementary Prescribers • Dentists • Hospital Consultants • Opticians	Other exclusionsOther prescribing exclusions include:• Private prescription• Personally administered• Dispensed• Source of drug is other than In Practice• Prescribing date is in the past		

eCMS Therapy Options

There are user configurable options for CMS in Consultation Manager. These are per user preferences. Please make sure you are only logged into Vision on the current machine or else the changes will not be saved.

- 1. In Consultation Manager, go to **Consultation Options Setup**.
- 2. Select the **Therapy** tab. In the CMS section you can select:
 - **Default Medication Term** you can currently pick from 24 or 48 weeks.
 - **Default Dispensing Frequency** select from 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 12 weeks
- 3. Press **OK** to save.

CMS - Therapy Initial List

You can make the CMS view the initial view in the Therapy tab in Consultation Manager.

- 1. In Consultation Manager, select a patient and open a Consultation.
- 2. Right click on the Therapy tab and select View Options
- 3. From the Initial List, select **CMS**.
- 4. Click **OK** to save.

eCMS Message Management

The main objective of eCMS is that the patient registers with a CP and after having been issued with a CMS GP10, the patient's drugs are repeatedly dispensed by the CP over an agreed period of time (currently 24 or 48 weeks). It is therefore imperative that you are able to send, receive and process information pertaining to registration, dispensing and treatment summary reports, including any replacements and deletions.

Mail Manager and a new function called **Message Collector** manage the transmission and receipt of all eCMS-related messages, and should be checked on a daily basis. The **Message Collector** looks after the mechanics of message transmission and imports the messages into Mail Manager, where incoming and outgoing messages can be monitored. You can view the details of the last Message Collector transmission from the CMS tab in **Mail Gateway**.

Before you can send and receive eCMS messages successfully, you need to make sure that you have configured the Message Collector scheduled task option on the GPC machine/EDI account. You should also be familiar with the daily workings of Mail Manager (i.e. allocating messages, assigning patients, actioning, etc).

eCMS Message Collector

The eCMS Message Collector should have been configured to run automatically as a daily scheduled task from the GPC Machine/EDI Account when eCMS was initially enabled. You are also able to run a manual CMS Message Collection which enables you to request and receive data from the ePharmacy message store on an ad hoc basis.

Manual Collection

To run the CMS Message Collector manually:

1. From the front screen of Vision select **Modules – CMS Message Collector**.

2. Select the Message Type for which you would like to check. You can select from Registration, Dispensing Update or Treatment Summary Report messages.

\$ CMS Message Collector	
Message Type	
 Registration 	
C Dispensing Update	Process
C Treatment Summary Report	Stop Waiting
Audits	
Last Run:	
Status:	
Description:	
Select Audit View Audit	Exit

- 3. Select **Process** to send a request for messages to the ePharmacy store.
- 4. The status displays as **In Process** whilst waiting for messages to be returned. It might take some time to return a response for the request.

Ê	CMS Messa	ge Collector	×
	- Message Typ	e	
	🖸 Registrati	on	
	C Dispensing Update		Process
	C Treatmen	Stop Waiting	
	Audits		
	Last Run:	17/06/2009 12:10:16	
	Status:	In Progress	
	Description:	Sent GPRegistrationUpdatesRequest Message [AppTran 6DC6208F-E2CD-4F9C-915F-4E3A6A53F827]	isid =
		Select Audit View Audit	Exit

5. The Audit status and description displays as Complete once the message collection process has finished.

🜲 CMS Message Collector	×
Message Type	
C Dispensing Update	Process
C Treatment Summary Report	Stop Waiting
Audits	
Last Run: 17/06/2009 12:10:44	
Status: Complete	
Description: Complete	
Select Audit View Audit	Exit

If there are no messages to collect a prompt appears detailing that no update messages exist for the selected message type.

CMS Mes	sage Collector	×
	No Registration update messages	exist
	OK	

6. The messages can now be checked in Mail Manager.

CMS Message Collector Audit

From the CMS Message Collector, you can view an audit trail of previous message collection processes for each message type. This functionality is particularly useful when trying to determine why an error has occurred and will most probably be used by the helpdesk.

- 1. From the main CMS Message Collector window, select the message type you would like to view the audit for.
- 2. You can then elect to:
 - **View Audit** which allows you to view an audit of the last run message collection.

• **Select Audit** which allows you to select from a list of previously run message collections.

🜲 CM5 Message Collector	×
Message Type	
Registration	
O Dispensing Update	Process
Treatment Summary Report	Stop Waiting
Audits	
Last Run: 17/06/2009 12:10:44	
Status: Complete	
Description: Complete	
Select Audit View Audit	Exit

3. Once you have selected which audit log you would like to display, the following screen appears. The collection process is broken down into the sequence of events. This may help you identify where an error originates.

View Logs	×
Open Log File PNExtracts/CMS/REG200901151355.log Clear Log	
1 15/01/2009 13:55:06 Sent GPRegistrationUpdatesRequest Message [AppTransId = B500A9EE-88D8-487D-967E-11171DEE8C00] 2 15/01/2009 13:55:41 Received Registration Message [AppTransId = b500a9ee-88d8-487d-967e-11171dee8c00] 3 15/01/2009 13:55:44 Successfully processed GPRegistrationUpdatesResponseEnv Message 4 15/01/2009 13:55:45 Successfully processed GPRegistrationUpdatesResponseEnv Message 5 15/01/2009 13:55:48 Successfully processed GPRegistrationUpdatesResponseEnv Message 5 15/01/2009 13:55:48 Sent GPRegistrationUpdatesResponseEnv Message 6 15/01/2009 13:55:28 Received Acknowledgement Message [AppTransId = D3BCCC83-4E76-40AE-B07C-779ACE47B563] 7 15/01/2009 13:56:28 All 'Registration' Messages have been processed 8 15/01/2009 13:56:46 Complete	

eCMS Regular Tasks

The following lists show the recommended housekeeping tasks for eCMS.

GPs

Consultation Manager

• Review patients for CMS suitability at relevant patient encounters.

Mail Manager

- Regularly check Mail Manager outgoing folder for unsuccessful messages for clinical staff. These will either have failed to be transmitted in the first place, or have 'timed out' because an acknowledgement has not been received successfully, and in both cases will display with a status of 'Transmission error'.
- On a daily basis check for incoming Treatment Summary Reports in Mail Manager. These need to be viewed so that the relevant GP can take any action required (e.g. issue a repeat CMS prescription), before they can be Marked as Read and manually filed.

CMS Populate

• You might also like to create the Suitability Report once a month to check for new suitable CMS patients. This could be allocated as an admin task.

Admin staff

GP Communicator

• Check that the Mail Gateway is running properly – eCMS tab.

Mail Manager

- Check for unmatched and unallocated messages in Mail Manager.
- Check for messages in error.

Search and Reports

- Run the Dispensing Report on a daily basis in Search and Reports. This allows you to monitor the patients that are not collecting their medication.
- Run the Batch Messaging Errors Report on a daily basis. This highlights and gives details of any messaging errors.
- Run the Suitability Report once a month to check for new suitable CMS patients. This could be a clinician's task.

Mail Gateway

There is a new eCMS tab within the Mail Gateway screen, which displays the status of the last eCMS message collector process. You should check the status of this on a daily basis. See GPC on screen help for Mail Gateway details

eCMS Reporting

There are eight reports within Search and Reports that you can use to monitor CMS activity. Each report can be found from the **Vision – Search & Reports-Reports – CMS Reporting** menu. See Search and Reports on screen help for further details.

Suitability	Suitability	Registrations	Registrations	Prescriptions
Report	Audit Report	Report	Audit Report	Report
 Lists patients with a Suitability Status as CMS Suitable. 	 Lists changes in suitability status for individual patients. 	 Lists all patients who are currently registered for CMS with a Community Pharmacy. 	 Lists changes in eCMS Registration status for individual patients. 	 Lists eCMS prescription items within a date range.

Overdue	Prescription Item	Treatment Report	Batch Messaging
Dispensing Report	Renewal Report		Errors Report
 Lists CMS Items that have overdue dispensing information. 	• This report lists CMS prescription items that will expire within a user-specified date range but have not yet been re- authorised.	 Lists all patients who are currently registered for CMS with a Community Pharmacy. 	 Lists eCMS messages which have errors within a date range.

Index

Α

Activating eAMS • 9 Activating eCMS • 5, 24 Adding a CMS Prescription • 38 Adding an Acute eAMS Prescription • 11 Adding an alert after the CMS item has been entered • 53 Adding Pharmacy Codes • 24, 25 Admin staff • 59 Advanced Printing for ePharmacy and Printer Profiles • 6

С

Cancelling an eAMS Item • 19 Cancelling CMS Items • 48 Changing between ePharmacy and Paper • 15 Changing Patient Suitability from the Therapy tab, Consultation Manager • 32 Changing Patient Suitability from Therapy - Add • 32 Changing Patient Suitability in Patient Details, Consultation Manager • 31 CMS - Therapy Initial List • 55 CMS Message Collector Audit • 57 CMS Overdue Dispensing Alert • 40, 52 CMS Prescribing • 36 CMS Registration Status • 34 Copyright Notice • ii

D

Deleting CMS Dispensing Events • 52 Deleting CMS Items • 51 Deleting Printed CMS items • 51 Deleting Unprinted CMS items • 51 Dispensing Events • 47 Dispensing Information in Consultation Manager • 37 Display Inactive/Cancelled CMS Items • 50 Duplicate CMS Items • 41

Ε

eAMS • 9 eAMS messages in Mail Manager • 21 eCMS • 22 eCMS Exclusions • 38, 54 eCMS Message Collector • 55 eCMS Message Management • 33, 55 eCMS Registration and Patient Status • 33, 54 eCMS Regular Tasks • 59 eCMS Reporting • 60 eCMS Therapy Options • 40, 54 Editing AMS Items • 20 Editing CMS Items • 48 Editing CMS Items that have been printed and sent • 48 Editing Unprinted CMS Items • 48 Eligible/Not Eligible • 34 ePharmacy • 5 ePharmacy Prescription Notes • 8

F

Flagging Individual Patients as Suitable for eCMS • 29, 34 Flagging Suitable eCMS Patients • 26

G

GP Locums and ePharmacy • 6 GP Perspective • 22 GP Prescribers for ePharmacy • 6 GPs • 59 Group Populating Patients Suitable for eCMS • 26, 34

I

Important Information about Deleting, Amending or Cancelling CMS Items • 48 Instalment Dispensing • 12 Introduction to ePharmacy • 5

М

Mail Gateway • 59 Manual Collection • 55

Ν

Non-AMS Items • 14

0

Overdue Dispensing Alert - Alerts Pane • 53 Overdue Dispensing Report • 53

Ρ

Patient Consent for eAMS • 9 Patient Perspective • 23 Patient Suitability • 34 Pharmacy Perspective • 24 Prescription Notes - AMS • 12 Prescription Printing of eAMS Items • 16 Printer Profiles • 7 Printing Contraceptive Endorsements • 42 Printing Newly Added CMS Items At Another Time • 46 Printing the CMS GP10 • 41

Q

Qualifying Items for eAMS • 11, 14

R

Reauthorising CMS Items • 47 Reorder Forms • 46 Reprinting CMS GP10 • 43 Reprinting Restrictions • 17, 44

T

Therapy - CMS Filter • 37

V

Viewing CMS Registration Status and Suitability • 28, 35

W

Why can't our locum GP print prescriptions? • 6 Workflow Overview • 22